Case: 1:17-cv-00210-GHD-DAS Doc #: 1 Filed: 12/19/17 1 of 12 PageID #: 1

### IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI ABERDEEN DIVISION

KENDRICK SLAUGHTER, NADJA WALKER,
ANTJUAN JETHROW, ALMA WREN, MATTIE COLLINS,
JINISHA SIMONDS, DAISY LANDRUM, CORTEZ LANDRUM,
NANNETTE TANKSLEY, AND DEION SANDERS on Behalf of Themselves
and Others Similarly Situated

**CAUSE NO.:** 1:17cv210-GHD-DAS

NORTH ATLANTIC SECURITY COMPANY, AND JOHN DOES 1 -20, Individually

**DEFENDANTS** 

## COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

For their Complaint against North Atlantic Security Company, and John Does 1-20, Individually ("Defendants"), Plaintiffs Kendrick Slaughter, Nadja Walker, Antjuan Jethrow, Alma Wren, Mattie Collins, Jinisha Simonds, Daisy Landrum, Cortez Landrum, Nannette Tanksley, and Deion Sanders ("Plaintiffs") states and alleges upon information and belief, and on behalf of themselves and others similarly situated individuals, as follows:

#### **SUMMARY**

1. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs and other similarly situated employees a minimum wage, and failed to pay over time wages pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (hereinafter referred to as "FLSA").

#### **JURISDICTION & VENUE**

- 2. This Court has original jurisdiction to hear this Complaint and to adjudicate the claims stated herein under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, because this action is brought under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq.
- 3. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391, because Defendants are doing business and have a principal place of business in this district and, upon information and belief, a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in this district.

#### **PARTIES**

- 4. Plaintiff, Kendrick Slaughter, is a resident of Lowndes County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company, it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location, during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Slaughter was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 5. Plaintiff, Nadja Walker, is a resident of Lowndes County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Walker was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 6. Plaintiff, Antjuan Jethrow, is a resident of Lowndes County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Jethrow was Defendants' employee within the

- meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 7. Plaintiff, Alma Wren, is a resident of Kemper County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Wren was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 8. Plaintiff, Mattie Collins, is a resident of Laurderdale County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Collins was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 9. Plaintiff, Jinisha Simonds, is a resident of Laurderdale County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Simonds was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 10. Plaintiff, Daisy Landrum, is a resident of Sumter County, Alabama, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Landrum was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 11. Plaintiff, Cortez Landrum, is a resident of Sumter County, Alabama, and worked as a

security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Landrum was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).

- 12. Plaintiff, Nannette Tanksley, is a resident of Kemper County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Tanksley was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 13. Plaintiff, Deion Sanders, is a resident of Noxubee County, Mississippi, and worked as a security guard for Defendant North Atlantic Security Company at it's Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi location during the relevant statutory period, within three (3) years prior to commencement of this litigation. Plaintiff Sanders was Defendants' employee within the meaning of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).
- 14. The class of similarly situated employees ("the Class") consists of all persons employed by Defendants at any of their business locations identified herein in the last three years and whose hourly rate during any of their work week was less than the applicable minimum wage, and who Defendants failed to pay overtime wages as alleged herein.
- 15. North Atlantic Security Company is an Indiana Corporation, with their principal place of business in Columbus, Lowdnes County, Mississippi. It may be served with process through its registered agent, CT Corporation System, 150 West Market Street, Suite 800, Indianapolis, IN, 46204. Said Defendants also engage in their business of providing security

guard services at it's locations in Columbus, Mississippi, Huntsville, Alabama, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, Pompano Beach, Florida, Knoxville, Tennessee, Georgia, Texas, and Arkansas.

- 16. Defendants' gross volume of sales of their services exceeds \$500,000 per year, exclusive of excise taxes, and Defendants conduct their aforesaid businesses in interstate commerce. Defendants, Atlantic Security Company, and John Does 1-20 offered and provided security services to various customers. The Annual Dollar Volume (ADV) from the sale of said services of these individual enterprises is in the multi-million dollar range which is greatly in excess of the required ADV of \$500,000 for FLSA enterprise coverage under 29 U.S.C. 203(s)(1)(A). Plaintiffs and members of the proposed class are covered on an individual basis under FLSA since they are engaged in the sale of and providing of services for interstate commerce. 29 U.S.C. 216(b) permits the Plaintiffs to bring private law suits to collect back wages on behalf of themselves and the class described herein.
- 17. John Doe 1-20 are joint or co-owners, or agents of Defendant, North Atlantic Security Company, acting with Defendant North Atlantic Security in committing violations of FLSA as alleged herein. Their true identities are not yet known to Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs will move to amend and assign their true identities once known to Plaintiffs.

#### **FACTS**

18. Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated individuals pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). Plaintiffs and the similarly situated individuals work or worked for Defendants as security guards, at any time from three years prior to the filing of this Complaint to the entry of the judgment in this action.

- 19. During the relevant statutory period, Plaintiffs and the similarly situated individuals regularly worked over forty (40) hours per week without receiving proper compensation for their overtime hours worked.
- 20. As above outlined, at the times pertinent to this complaint, Defendants failed to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act, in that Plaintiffs and other employees similarly situated worked for Defendants in excess of the maximum hours provided by the Act, but provision was not made by Defendants to pay Plaintiffs and other employees similarly situated, payment for work in excess of the maximum hours provided for by statue at the rate of time and a half their regular rate of pay; moreover, Plaintiffs and other employees similarly situated have been forced by Defendants to work for periods during which the minium wage provided for in the Act was not paid and more particularly for which no payment whatever was made by Defendants to Plaintiffs and other employees similarly situated, all in violation of the Fair labor Standards Act.

#### **COUNT I**

#### **COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS**

- 21. Plaintiffs bring Count I in this Complaint on behalf of themselves and other similarly situated individuals pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). Plaintiffs and the similarly situated individuals are individuals who are currently or have been employed by Defendants at any of their locations identified herein as security guards providing security services to customers of the Defendant.
- 22. During the applicable statutory period, Plaintiffs and the Collective Class routinely worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week without receiving overtime compensation for all overtime hours worked, and hence, also were not receiving minimum wages. Defendants were aware that Plaintiffs and the Collective Class were working overtime hours because Plaintiffs and the

similarly situated individuals were required to work such hours by agents/employees of Defendants.

Hence, Defendants were aware of the specific times Plaintiffs and the Collective Class were working at each jobsite as required by Defendants.

- 23. Although they regularly worked more than forty (40) hours per week, Plaintiffs and the Collective Class did not receive proper overtime pay from Defendants.
- 24. During the applicable statutory period, Defendants failed to keep accurate time records for all hours worked by Plaintiffs and the Collective Class.
- 25. Defendants' conduct as described above was willful and in bad faith. Upon information and belief, Defendants received numerous complaints from employees regarding Defendants' failure to pay overtime pay for hours worked over forty (40) per week. Upon information and belief, when coworkers of Plaintiffs inquired of Defendants' agents and supervisors about why they were not paid overtime, Defendants explained that Defendants simply did not pay for such overtime and threatened to terminate Plaintiffs for further complaints. In addition, Plaintiffs are aware of other workers similarly situated being reprimanded for complaining about not being paid for overtime hours worked.
- 26. These practices violate the provision of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §201, et seq. including, but not limited to, 29 U.S.C. § 207. As a result of these unlawful practices, Plaintiffs and the Collective Class have suffered loss of wages.
- 27. Plaintiffs also seek liquidated damages for Defendants' intentional and knowing acts of failure to pay Plaintiffs, and the Class, wages as alleged herein. By reason of Defendants' refusal to pay the unpaid minimum wages and overtime due Plaintiffs and other employees similarly situated, it has been necessary for them to employ attorneys to prosecute this cause for them, and

incur a reasonable charge for their attorney's fees.

- 28. Plaintiffs, bring this case as an "opt-in" collective action on behalf of similarly situated employees of Defendants pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 215(b).
- 29. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the Class, seek relief on a collective basis challenging Defendants' pay and practice of failure to pay overtime and/or minimum wages as alleged herein.
- 30. The total number and identities of the Class may be determined from the records of employment, including, but not limited to, time cards, check stubs and earnings records of the Plaintiffs and class employed by Defendants.
- 31. The claims of Plaintiffs, are similar, typical, and common to the Class because they and the Class have been required to participate in an illegal payment scheme as above alleged and have been unlawfully denied payment of the Federal minimum wage and overtime. Furthermore, the Class is so numerous that joinder would be impracticable.
- 32. Plaintiffs' experiences are typical of the experiences of the Class.
- 33. Defendants' failure to pay minimum wage and to pay overtime wages at the rates required by the FLSA results from generally applicable policies or practices and does not depend on the personal circumstances of Plaintiffs or the Class.
- 34. Specific job titles or job duties of the Class do not prevent collective treatment.
- 35. All potential members of the Class, irrespective of their particular job duties, are entitled to the difference between their hourly rate and the applicable minimum wage for all hours worked, and payment for over time hours worked at time and a half their regular rate of pay.

36. Although the issue of damages can be individual in character, there remains in this case, a common nucleus of liability facts.

#### **COUNT II**

# FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (Overtime Violations)

- 37. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate the above paragraphs by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 38. The FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §207, requires employers to pay employees one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over forty hours per work week.
- 39. Defendants suffered and permitted Plaintiffs and the Collective Class to routinely work more than forty (40) hours per week without overtime compensation.
- 40. Defendants' actions, policies, and/or practices as described above violate the FLSA's overtime requirement by regularly and repeatedly failing to compensate Plaintiff and the Collective Class at the required overtime rate.
- 41. Defendants knew, or showed reckless disregard for the fact, that they failed to pay these individuals overtime compensation in violation of the FLSA.
- 42. As the direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful conduct, Plaintiffs and the Collective Class have suffered and will continue to suffer a loss of income and other damages. Plaintiffs and the Collective Class are entitled to wages or unpaid wages, liquidated damages, and attorneys' fees and costs incurred in connection with this claim.
- 43. By failing to accurately record, report, and/or preserve records of hours worked by

Plaintiffs and the Collective Class, Defendants have failed to make, keep, and preserve records with respect to each of their employees sufficient to determine their wages, hours, and other conditions and practice of employment, in violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.

- 44. The foregoing conduct, as alleged, constitutes a willful violation of the FLSA within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. §255(a) as Defendants knew, or showed reckless disregard for the fact that their compensation practices were in violation of these laws.
- 45. Defendants have a policy and practice of failing to pay the prevailing minimum wage and failure to pay over time wages properly. Such policy and practice were intentionally and willfully instituted and followed, and violates the FLSA 29 U.S.C. § 209(m) and 201 U.S.C. 216(b).
- 46. Defendants knew or should have known that their policies and practices relating to the non-payment of minimum wages and over time violate the FLSA.
- 47. Defendants have not made a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA.
- 48. Rather, Defendants have knowingly, willfully, and/or with reckless disregard, carried out, and continue to carry out their illegal payment practices in violation of the FLSA as above outlined.
- 49. Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to the difference between their hourly rate and the prevailing wage for all hours worked, and the amount they received from Defendants for compensation, and one and one-half such amount of wage for overtime hours worked.
- 50. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all averments set forth in Paragraphs 1 through
  49 above as if fully incorporated herein. Defendants fraudulently misrepresented to the Plaintiffs
  that they were not owed overtime wages because they were exempt employees under the FLSA while
  intentionally and falsely representing hours worked and failure to pay overtime for same.

51. In addition, Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to an amount equal to their unpaid wages as liquidated damages, as well as reasonable attorney's fees and costs of this action. 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

#### COUNT III

#### **FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION**

- 52. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all averments set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 51 above as if fully incorporated herein.
- 53. Defendants fraudulently misrepresented to the Plaintiff that they were not owed overtime wages or minimum wages, and further intimidated, harassed, and threatened termination of Plaintiffs and the class when inquiry was made regarding payment of overtime wages or minimum wages.

#### **JURY DEMAND**

54. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury of this action

#### **PRAYER**

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendants as follows:

- A. That notice of this action be given to all similarly situated individuals as soon as possible;
- B. That the practices of Defendants complained of herein be determined and adjudicated to be in violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §201 et seq.;
- C. That the practices of Defendants complained of herein be determined to be a willful violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §201 et seq.;

- D. For damages in the amount of Plaintiffs' and the Collective Class' unpaid overtime wages, an equal amount as liquidated damages, interest, all costs and attorney's fees incurred in prosecuting this claim, and all other relief available under the FLSA;
- E. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury.
- F. That Plaintiffs be granted leave to amend the Complaint to add state law claims if necessary; and
- G. For all such other relief as the Court deems equitable and just.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ W. Howard Gunn
W. HOWARD GUNN
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS

W. HOWARD GUNN ATTORNEY AT LAW 310 SOUTH HICKORY STREET POST OFFICE BOX 157 ABERDEEN MS 39730 662/369-8533 MSB NO. 5073 Case: 1:17-cv-00210-GHD-DAS Doc #: 1-1 Filed: 12/19/17 1 of 1 PageID #: 13

JS 44 (Rev. 06/17)

### **CIVIL COVER SHEET**

1:17cv210-GHD-DAS

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

DESCRIPTION AND PROPERTY.

Kelturick Stategates Tandia Walker, Antjuan Jethrow, Alma Wren, Mat Collins, Jinisha Simonds, Daisy Landrum, Cortez Landrum, Nannette Tanksley, and Deion Sanders				North Atlantic Security Company, John Does 1-20					
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Lowndes County, M  (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)			<u> </u>	County of Residence of First Listed Defendant Marion County, IN  (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)  NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.					
W.Howard Gurin, Warto PO Box 157, Aberdeen, phone: 662-369-8533		Cates, LLC		Attorneys (If Known)					
II. BASIS OF JURISD	ICTION (Place an "X" in t	One Box Only)		TIZENSHIP OF P	RINCIPA	L PARTIES	(Place an "X" in	One Box j	for Plainti <u>j</u>
☐ 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	■ 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)				FF DEF	Incorporated or Pr		or Defende PTF 4	ant) DEF 2X 4
U.S. Government Defendant	<ul> <li>4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)</li> </ul>			Citizen of Another State				□ 5	Ö 5
				eign Country	3 🗆 3	Foreign Nation		<u> </u>	
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only)				Click here for: Nature					
□ 110 Insurance □ 120 Marine □ 130 Miller Act □ 140 Negotiable Instrument □ 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment □ 151 Medicare Act □ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) □ 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits □ 160 Stockholders' Suits □ 190 Other Contract □ 195 Contract Product Liability □ 196 Franchise □ 197 PROPERTY □ 210 Land Condemnation □ 220 Foreclosure □ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment □ 240 Torts to Land □ 245 Tort Product Liability □ 290 All Other Real Property	PERSONAL INJURY  310 Airplane  315 Airplane Product Liability  320 Assault, Libel &	Other:	7	5 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 0 Other  LABOR 0 Fair Labor Standards Act 1 Labor/Management Relations 0 Railway Labor Act 1 Family and Medical Leave Act 10 Other Labor Litigation 1 Employee Retirement Income Security Act 1 MMIGRATION 2 Naturalization Application 5 Other Immigration Actions	422 Appe   423 With 28 U   PROFILE   820 Copy   830 Paten   835 Paten   840 Trade   861 HIA   862 Black   863 DIWG   864 SSID   865 RSI ( 870 Taxes or De   871 IRS   26 U   8	RYRIGHTS rights tt t - Abbreviated Drug Application smark STCURTY (1395ff) Lung (923) C/DIWW (405(g)) Title XVI 405(g))  I, TAX SUITS (U.S. Plaintiff ofendant)	375 False Cli   376 Qui Tarr   3729(a)   400 State Re   410 Antitrust   430 Banks ar   450 Commer   460 Deportat   470 Racketee   Compt (	o (31 USC ) apportion (1) appo	g  ed and  ions  dities/  ctions  ters  nation
V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in	One Roy Only)	Confinement	-				<u> </u>		
🕱 l Original 🔲 2 Ren		Remanded from Appellate Court	4 Reins Reop	,	rred from r District	☐ 6 Multidistr Litigation Transfer	-	Multidist Litigation Direct Fil	n -
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	N 29 U.S.C. Section Brief description of ca			o not cite jurisdictional stati	utes unless div	ersity):			
VII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.			EMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:  JURY DEMAND: Yes ONo						
VIII. RELATED CASE(S)  IF ANY  (See instructions):  JUDGE			DOCKET NUMBER						
DATE 12/19/20	17	SIGNATURE OF ATTO	DINEY O	FRECORD					
FOR OFFICE USE ONEY  RECEIPT # AM	10UNT \$400	APPLYING IFP		ЛЛДĞE	GHD	MAG. JUD	GE DAS	S	

# **ClassAction.org**

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: North Atlantic Security Company Hit with Allegations of Unpaid Overtime Wages